
IFA BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Date: Tuesday December 9, 2025 

Location: Craig City Hall & By Teleconference  

Time: 10:00 AM 

Teleconference Info: Meeting ID: 295 397 272 459 98 Passcode: n8fb7C6m 

Board of Directors Meeting | Meeting-Join | Microsoft Teams 

Agenda  

1. Call to Order
2. Roll Call (Board, Staff, Public)
3. Approval of Agenda
4. Approval of Minutes

a. September 11, 2025 Minutes
5. Public Comment
6. Correspondence

a. Fish & Game Box Fund Discussion – Miscellaneous Income?
b. Review of New Baggage truck carts

7. General Manager’s Report
8. Finance Manager’s Report

a. PERS Audit
9. Old Business

a. Rotating Board Meeting to on the Ferry
10. New Business

a. Resolution 2026-02 Authorize Lifetime Event Discount for Employees
b. Approve Bill Sharpes and Joe Krane for Lifetime Travel after their years of service to 

the IFA
c. Resolution 2026-03 Authorize RFP for Professional Services & BOD Strategic 

Planning
d. 2026 Marketing/Social Media Campaign

11. Board Comments
12. Schedule Next Meeting

a. March 17th?
13. Adjournment

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NzVlZWU2YzAtMzY2ZC00MmI0LWIwMmEtODM0OTNhODNmMmJh%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22a51ce186-ba1e-4aa5-9d8c-82c23943be5e%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%227ccbc77f-5860-4020-b0d4-abdd2f319bd0%22%7d


Board of Director Regular Meeting Minutes 
September 11, 2025      Recorder: Johanna Thayer

1. Call Meeting to Order:   Jeff Nickerson called meeting to order at 10:04am

2. Roll Call:

Chair Klawock Jeff Nickerson Present 
Vice Chair Coffman Cove  Brian Wilson Present 
Sec/Tres Craig   Fred Hamilton Present 
Director Thorne Bay Harvey McDonald Absent Excused 
Director Hydaburg  Sam Mooney  Present at 10:07am 
Director At Large  Doug Rhodes  Present 

Staff Present: Johanna Thayer, Ron Curtis, Chrissy Torsey-Lucero, and Beth Hartley.  
Staff present via teleconference: Walter Marsh, Katie Martin, Kristine Hansen, Carly Eddy 
Public Present: Jon Bolling  
Public present via teleconference: Amy McDonald-Killian 

3. Approval of Agenda
Motion: Approve agenda as presented
Moved By: Doug Rhodes
Seconded By: Fred Hamilton
Motion approved unanimously.

4. Approval of Minutes
Motion: Approve minutes for June 19, 2025 and June 24, 2025
Moved By: Fred Hamilton
Seconded By: Doug Rhodes
Motion approved unanimously.

5. Public Comment:
a. Amy McDonald-Killian thanks the Board for honoring her father, Harvey McDonald. She shares

what serving on the Board meant to Harvey and appreciates the Board’s support and
involvement and is looking forward to taking over for her father. The Board congratulated Amy
on her nomination.

6. Correspondence
a. Letter of Support of the Ketchikan Gateway Borough’s Port Infrastructure Development

Program Grant Application.
i. Ron shares that the letter has been emailed and that Metlakatla is in support of the

plan. In the long run, this will cut down on traffic at our dock in Ketchikan.
b. Letter Regarding Ticket Jackets

i. Johanna shares that Ticket Jackets have not been an efficient use of IFA funds for
marketing and proposes an alternative method of marketing. Sharing that, at the



December meeting she will have a complete proposal for the Board. Doug asks for a 
quick summary of the plan. Johanna shares that the new marketing plan will focus on 
Social Media marketing, and funds from the cost of printing Ticket Jackets will go to 
Social Media ads instead of print items that aren’t read and frequently thrown away. 
Johanna also provides a brief summary of targeted ads.  

7. General Manager’s Report  
a. Attached.  
b. During the discussion of 7. Staffing, Sam expresses concern over how fast that everything is 

happening, with one Captain retiring in February, and only three people in the company who 
can drive the boat, we are running out of time. Ron echoes the sentiment that we are not in a 
great place, but if worse comes to worse, and we haven’t hired someone, Rich will drive the 
boat. Fred points out that with commercial fishing and charters up in the air; there is potential 
in some of the Commercial and Charter Captains being available locally.  
Sam also points out that a Strategic Plan and form a Strategic Planning Committee.  
After the discussion about 8. Vigor shipyard, Sam asks what happened with the previous 
Assistant Port Engineer, and Ron responds that we chose to part ways.  

8. Finance Manager’s Report  
a. Chrissy shares that the FY2023 grant has been finished and closed out. And that the POW 

Overhaul is on schedule, and the match has been provided to the state. Currently the 
insurance broker is trying to get a reduction of 10%. The FY24 audit has been completed, and 
the FY25 one will be starting soon. Fred asks if there were any findings, Chrissy said that no 
there were not, in fact there have only been two years where there were incidents. Fred 
congratulates Chrissy. The Board then thanks Chrissy for her work.  

9. Old Business  
a. None  

10. New Business 
a. Motion: To accept Thorne Bay’s nomination of Amy McDonald-Killian to the Board of 

Directors.  
Moved by: Doug Rhodes  
Seconded by: Fred Hamilton  
Chair   Klawock  Jeff Nickerson   Yes  
Vice Chair Coffman Cove Brian Wilson  Yes 
Sec/Tres  Craig   Fred Hamilton   Yes  
Director  Hydaburg  Sam Mooney  Yes 
Director  At Large Doug Rhodes  Yes 

b. Motion: Approve to offer Driver Free for January, February, and March 2026 
Moved by: Sam Mooney  
Seconded by: Fred Hamilton 
Chair   Klawock  Jeff Nickerson   Yes  
Vice Chair Coffman Cove Brian Wilson  Yes 
Sec/Tres  Craig   Fred Hamilton   Yes  
Director  Thorne Bay Amy Killian-McDonald  Yes 
Director  Hydaburg  Sam Mooney  Yes 
Director  At Large Doug Rhodes  Yes 
Motion approved unanimously. 

c. Motion: Approve the discontinuation of Ticket Jackets for alternative Advertising Revenue to 
be Presented in December  
Moved by:  
Seconded by:  
Motion approved unanimously.  



d. Motion: Motion: Approve resolution 2026-01 “Accept FY2024 Financial Audit by Christine 
Harrington”  
Moved by: Fred Hamilton  
Seconded by: Sam Mooney 
Chair   Klawock  Jeff Nickerson   Yes  
Vice Chair Coffman Cove Brian Wilson  Yes 
Sec/Tres  Craig   Fred Hamilton   Yes  
Director  Thorne Bay Amy Killian-McDonald Yes 
Director  Hydaburg  Sam Mooney  Yes 
Director  At Large Doug Rhodes  Yes 
Motion approved unanimously. 

e. Southeast Conference September 16th to 19th in Sitka 
11. Board Comments 

Sam asks about Vigor leaving and JAG’s agreement. Ron shared that he met with JAG and they 
will be retaining much of their workforce and that JAG will do everything Vigor did.  
 Sam says that  
 

12. Adjournment    Motion: Adjourn meeting at 11:14 a.m.; moved by Sam Mooney and seconded by Fred 
Hamilton. Motion approved unanimously. 

 

 



 

To: IFA Board of Directors 

From: Chrissy Torsey-Lucero & Johanna Thayer 

Date: December 9, 2025 

Re: Fish Box Funds Allocations 

Dear Board Members, 

I am writing to present a proposal for the Board’s consideration regarding the use of Fish Box 

program funds. With revenues increased following the adjustment of the Fish Box/Cooler fees, we 

now have an opportunity to direct these funds toward initiatives that support both our fishing and 

maritime communities and community in general. 

The proposal recommends the following key initiatives: 

1. Fishing Industry Scholarship: Allocating funds through a submission process to support 

local hatcheries or other entities actively contributing to the vitality and sustainability of our 

fishing industry. 

2. Maritime Scholarship: Establishing a scholarship for graduating students pursuing 

education or training in the maritime industry, helping build the next generation of mariners 

for our region. 

3. Monetary Donations: Set aside $3,500 for monetary donations on a first come first serve 

basis. Allowing the IFA to participate in more community donation efforts.  

All initiatives reinforce the IFA’s role as a community partner while ensuring that Fish Box funds 

are used transparently and for the benefit of the industries most closely tied to our operations. A 

financial summary and formal proposal has been included to demonstrate the adequacy of funds 

for these initiatives without impacting program stability. 

I respectfully requests the Boards approval to move forward with these concepts, with the 

understanding that detailed program guidelines will be developed and returned to the Board for 

final approval during our March meeting. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Chrissy Torsey-Lucero Johanna Jo Thayer 

Finance/HR Manager Administrative Director 

Inter-Island Ferry Authority Inter-Island Ferry Authority 



 

Proposal to the Board of Directors 

Use of Fish Box Funds for Community Sponsorship and Scholarship Program 

Background 

The Inter-Island Ferry Authority has long been interconnected with the fishing and maritime 

industries on Price of Wales Island. These industries not only rely on the transportation services 

provided by the IFA but also represent a significant part of the communities we serve. 

Following the Board-approved adjustment to Fish Box fees, revenues have increased and now 

present an opportunity to reinvest in the very industries that sustain and benefit from the IFA’s 

service. 

Proposal 

It is proposed that Fish Box funds be allocated to support two community-focused initiatives: 

1. Fishing Industry Support Sponsorship 

a. Sponsorship funds would be made available to a local organization actively 

contributing to the vitality and sustainability of the fishing industry. 

b. Eligible applicants may include fish hatcheries or other entities that directly support 

stock enhancement, sustainability efforts, or the overall economic health of the 

fishing sector. 

c. A request-for-submissions process would be established, allowing interested 

entities to apply by outlining their activities, community impact, and intended use of 

funds. 

d. The Board would form a committee and review the submissions to select a recipient 

annually (or on another cycle to be determined). 

2. Maritime Student Scholarship 

a. A scholarship program would be created to support graduating high school seniors 

pursuing post-secondary education or training in maritime fields. 

b. The scholarship would encourage the development of a skilled maritime workforce 

while providing direct benefit to local students. 

c. Eligibility criteria would include: proof of acceptance or enrollment in a maritime 

program, demonstration of academic achievement and community involvement, 

and a written statement of career goals. 

d. Award amounts, number of scholarships, and administration details would be 

developed with Board guidance. 

i. Suggestion of two $1,000 scholarships. 

3. Employee Programs Set-Aside 

a. To continue supporting the IFA’s employees, $10,000 of the Fish Box funds will be 

reserved annually to maintain existing employee programs. 



 

b. These programs include employee uniform allowance, employee Gift Cards, and 

other fringe benefits that contribute to employee satisfaction and retention. 

 
4. Monetary Donations 

a. Set aside $3,500 for monetary donations on a first come first serve basis. Allowing 

the IFA to participate in more community donation efforts.  

Financial Overview 

Before the implementation of the $20 fish box fee, and no free fish box, revenues from the Fish Box 

fee were $7,580 in FY2024. The fee was increased in April of 2025, and FY2025 ended the year with 

$15,070. As of November 30, 2025, FY2026 has seen $54,120. These figures show that the 

program can sustainably support all community programs without diminishing revenues. 

Benefits 

- Reinforces IFA’s role as a partner to the fishing industry and local communities. 

- Creates a transparent and structured use of Fish Box Funds. 

- Strengthens relationships with the fishing sector, which relies heavily on ferry services. 

- Encourages workforce development by supporting students pursuing maritime careers. 

- Enhances the IFA’s reputation as a community-minded organization. 

- Ensures continued support for IFA employees through stablished programs. 

Request for Board Action 

The Board is asked to approve the following: 

1. The allocation of Fish Box funds for two initiatives in FY2027: 

a. Sponsorship of a local fishing industry entity, selected through submission process. 

b. Establishment of scholarship for graduating high school students pursuing 

maritime careers. 

c. $10,000 reserved for employee programs (uniform allowance, gift cards, and other 

fringe benefits). 

d. Set aside $3,500 for monetary donations on a first come first serve basis. Allowing 

the IFA to participate in more community donation efforts. 

2. Authorization for staff to develop program guidelines, including eligibility criteria, award 

amounts, and submission processes, to be brought back to the Board for final review and 

approval. 





 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
September 23, 2025 
 
Chrysalis L Torsey-Lucero  
Finance Manager  
Inter-Island Ferry Authority  
P. O Box 470  
Klawock AK, 99925 
 
 
Dear Ms. Torsey-Lucero, 
  
In accordance with Alaska Statute (AS) 39.35, AS 39.30, and AS 39.45, the Division of Retirement 
and Benefits (DRB) Division Auditors conducted the Public Employees' Retirement System 
(PERS), Alaska Supplemental Annuity Plan (SBS) and Deferred Compensation Plan (DCP)  audit 
of the Inter-Island Ferry Authority (IFA), to determine compliance with PERS and SBS and DCP. 
We would like to thank IFA for their time and effort in assisting the Division with the audit.  
  
We conducted this compliance audit using guidance from the International Standards for the 
Professional Practice of Internal Auditing and in accordance with Generally Accepted Government 
Auditing Standards (GAGAS). DRB audits are not peer-reviewed, although they are reviewed 
yearly for reliance by retirement system external auditors. Those standards require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain appropriate and sufficient evidence to provide a reasonable basis 
for our findings and conclusions based on the audit objectives. We believe that the evidence 
obtained provides a reasonable basis for our findings and conclusions.  
 
In our capacities as DRB Auditors, we reviewed the information on a test basis, required by 
applicable Alaska statutes from a participating employer. Responsibility for both the accuracy of 
the data and completeness of the information reviewed rests with the management of the IFA. 
  
One issue of noncompliance was identified: 
 

1. The probationary periods for PERS participation have been applied in an 
inconsistent manner. 

 was enrolled in PERS only after completing 9 months instead of 7 
months’ probation as indicated in the IFA participation agreement. 

                                                                                   
The above-mentioned finding was presented in our preliminary report for IFA to review.  IFA 
agreed with our findings and is currently working with the Division or Robert Aceveda, Division 
Counseling and Benefits Manager, to resolve this issue. 



 
 

 
 

 
 
If you wish to discuss this item, please contact the Division of Retirement and Benefits by phone 
at (907) 465-4469, toll-free (800) 821-2251, or via email at nimeri.denis@alaska.gov. We look 
forward to working with you in the future.  
 
Sincerely,                                                                                              

 
 
 
 

Nimeri M. Denis D         
Division Auditor         
 
 
       
 
  
 
 
 



























 
Resolution No. 2026-02 

A RESOLUTION BY THE INTER-ISLAND FERRY AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
ESTABLISHING THE “LIFE EVENT DISCOUNT” EMPLOYEE BENEFIT.  

WHEREAS, the Inter-Island Ferry Authority (“IFA”) recognizes that its employees are essential to the safe, 
reliable, and continuous operation of the ferry system, AND  

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors strives to support employee wellbeing, strengthen workforce retention, 
and encourage positive community ties across Prince of Wales Island and Ketchikan; AND   

WHEREAS, major life events such as weddings, funerals, births, and other significant family milestones 
often require travel on short notice; AND  

WHEREAS, the IFA wishes to offer a modest, meaningful benefit that allows employees to support and be 
supported by their families and close communities by providing reduced-fare travel for guests during these 
major life events; AND  

WHEREAS, management recommends establishing a “Life Event Discount” under which employees may 
request a 25% discount for family members or close friends travelling on the IFA in relation to a qualifying 
life event; AND  

WHEREAS, this benefit will require guests to be accompanied by or sponsored by an IFA employee, will 
apply to passenger fares only unless otherwise approved, and will follow administrative procedures 
established by the General Manager to ensure consistent application. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE INTER-ISLAND 
FERRY AUTHORITY, that the IFA Board of Directors hereby adopts the Life Event Discount as an official 
employee benefit effective immediately upon passage; AND  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this resolution shall be incorporated into the IFA’s official employee 
benefits and referenced in future updates to personnel documents.  

This resolution shall become effective immediately upon approval.  

 

Approved this 9th day of  December, 2025 

 

_____________________________________________ 
Chair, Jeff Nickerson 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________________________ 
Secretary/Treasurer, Fred Hamilton  



 
Resolution No. 2026-03 

A RESOLUTION BY THE INTER-ISLAND FERRY AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
AUTHORIZING MANAGEMENT TO ISSUE A REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) FOR 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES TO FACILITATE BOARD OF DIRECTORS STRATEGIC 
PLANNING.   

WHEREAS, the Inter-Island Ferry Authority (“IFA”) is committed to long-term financial stability, reliable 
service delivery, workforce development, and the continued support of the communities it serves, AND  

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors recognizes the importance of a comprehensive Strategic Plan to guide 
the organizations priorities, operational direction, capital planning, and stakeholder engagement over the 
coming years; AND   

WHEREAS, the development of an effective Strategic Plan requires independent professional support to 
ensure neutral facilitation, data-based assessment, and broad representation of community, employee, 
partner, and stakeholder perspectives; AND  

WHEREAS, the Management of the IFA recommends issuing a formal Request for Proposals seeking 
qualified professionals to provide facilitation, analysis, and planning services for the Board of Directors’ 
Strategic Planning process; AND  

WHEREAS, the issuance of an RFP is consistent with the IFA Procurement Policy and ensures 
transparency, competitiveness, and fair opportunity for qualified providers; AND  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE INTER-ISLAND 
FERRY AUTHORITY, that the IFA Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Management of the IFA to 
prepare, issue, and publicly advertise an RFP for Professional Services to support and facilitate the Board 
of Directors Strategic Planning process; AND  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Management of the IFA is authorized to review submissions, conduct 
evaluations with in accordance with the Procurement Policy, and present the recommendation for contract 
award to the Board at the conclusion of the RFP process.   

This resolution shall become effective immediately upon approval.  

Approved this 9th day of  December, 2025 

 

_____________________________________________ 
Chair, Jeff Nickerson 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________________________ 
Secretary/Treasurer, Fred Hamilton  


	2024 Audit.pdf
	COVER AND TABLE OF CONTENTS
	PAGE 1
	PAGE 4
	PAGE 5
	PAGE 7
	PAGE 8
	PAGE 9
	PAGE 26
	PAGE 27
	PAGE 28
	PAGE 29
	PAGE 30
	PAGE 31
	PAGE 32
	PAGE 33
	PAGE 34
	PAGE 35
	PAGE 37
	PAGE 38




